ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 6, 2010
3:35 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Donald d son, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Li nda Menard

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Hollis French
COW TTEE CALENDAR
COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 273(FI N)
"An Act relating to general grant |land entitlenents for the Gty
and Borough of Wangell and for the Haines Borough; and
providing for an effective date."
- MOVED CSHB 273(FIN) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 273

SHORT TITLE: MUNI Cl PAL GENERAL GRANT LAND
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) P. W LSON

01/ 08/ 10 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 10

01/ 19/ 10 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 19/ 10 (H) CRA, FIN

02/ 11/ 10 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 11/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 11/ 10 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 25/ 10 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 25/ 10 (H Moved CSHB 273(CRA) Qut of Committee

02/ 25/ 10 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 26/ 10 (H) CRA RPT CS(CRA) 5DP 1NR

02/ 26/ 10 (H) DP: GARDNER, KELLER, HARRI'S, Cl SSNA,
MUNCZ

02/ 26/ 10 (H) NR. HERRON

03/ 17/ 10 (H) FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 17/ 10 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 10 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2010



03/18/10
03/18/10
03/18/10
03/ 19/ 10
03/19/10

03/ 19/ 10
03/ 24/ 10
03/ 24/ 10
03/ 25/ 10
03/ 25/ 10
04/ 06/ 10

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau,

QLULLIITIT I ITITZZ

NN AN AN AN AN

FIN AT 9:00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Moved CSHB 273(FIN) Qut of Conmit
M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 6DP 3NR

DP: THOVAS, AUSTERVAN, JOULE, N.
FAI RCLOUGH, STOLTZE

NR. GARA, DOOGAN, KELLY

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON:  CSHB 273(FI N)

READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

CRA

CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 273.

KACI SCHROEDER- HOTCH

Staff to Representative Thonmas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau,

PCSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformation for HB 273.

ROBERT VENEBLES, pl anni ng comm ssi oner

Hai nes Bor ough

Hai nes,

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 273.

CAROL RUSHMORE, director
Econom ¢ Devel opnent

Cty and Borough of Wangell
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 273.

MARK EARNEST, nmmnager
Hai nes Bor ough

Hai nes,

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 273.

DON MCCONACHI E, mayor

City and Borough of Wangell

W angel |,

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 273.

TI M ROONEY, manager

SENATE CRA COW TTEE

- 2- Apri |

tee

FOSTER,

6, 2010



City and Borough of Wangell
Wangel |, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 273.

Rl CHARD MYyLI US, director

Di vision of Mning, Land and Water (MW

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information for HB 273.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:35: 04 PM

CHAIR DONALD OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 3:35 p.m Present
at the call to order were Senators Menard, Kookesh and d son.

HB 273- MUNI Cl PAL GENERAL GRANT LAND

3:35:14 PM
CHAIR OLSON said the first order of business to cone before the
commttee was HB 273 [CSHB 273(FIN)].

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON, sponsor of HB 273, said the bill
corrects a deficit in the borough formation process, which
resulted in minimal |and entitlenment for the city and borough of
Wangell and Haines. HB 273 increases their nunicipal |and
entitlement. When a new nunicipality forms, the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR) grants the rmunicipality 10 percent of
the wvacant, wunappropriated and unreserved (VU) state |and
within the borough. Because the borough of Wangell is conprised
of over 97 percent federal land, Wangell's original entitlenent
from DNR was only 1,952 acres. O her Southeast comunities, such
as Hai nes, have had the sanme problem

The City and Borough of Wangell and DNR entered negotiations
and agreed on an acreage that was suitable to both parties. HB
273 was anended in the house Comunity and Regional Affairs
(CRA) committee based on these negotiations. The current version
of HB 273 entitles the Cty and Borough of Wangell to 6,506

acres. Wangell later realized that the Sunny Bay area, a 2,500
acre section of the Ceveland Peninsula parcel was included in
HB 295, the University Land Gant bill, and was slated to be

handed over to the university.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY WLSON said she anmended HB 295 in House
Resources conmttee, giving the Gty and Borough of Wangell

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- April 6, 2010



priority selection in this area. An anmendnment in House Finance
increased Wangell's entitlenent by about 2500 acres to allow
the city to select Sunny Bay in addition to their original
selections. The city had originally asked for 19,000 acres and
the selections still only equal 9,000 acres.

She noted that Sunny Bay is used by Alaska Crossings, a
statewi de wi |l derness youth program and the |argest enployer in
Wangell. It is also used by Wangell-based guide and charter
conpanies and is a subsistence and recreational use area for
| ocal residents. She asked that the conmttee consider passing
HB 273 with the full allotnment of the 9,600 acres for the City
and Borough of Wangell.

3:39:26 PM
CHAI R OLSON recogni zed Senator Thomas as joining the neeting.

CHAI R MENARD asked if HB 273 had any opposition.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON replied that a little pushback cane
from DNR.

CHAI R OLSON asked what DNR s nmin objection was.
REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON replied that DNR s mmin objection was

that HB 273 wll take 2,500 acres away from the wuniversity
al | ot ment .

CHAIR OLSON asked if the wuniversity has a problem with the
acreage sel ected by the borough.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON replied that the university testified

and expressed a sentiment simlar to, "Well there's not nuch we
can do about it."

CHAIR OLSON said the university has resigned itself to this. He
asked if HB 273 is displacing anyone fromthe area.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON replied no.

CHAIR OLSON asked if any of the land selection in HB 273 is in
t he Sout heast State Forest that is going to be established.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON replied no.

CHAI R OLSON asked what kind of developnent could go on in the
9,600 acres.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2010



REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON replied that Carol Rushnore can answer
t hat questi on.

3:42: 23 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if there was a land trade situation with
the university.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON replied no.

CHAIR OLSON asked Representative P. WIlson to address sone of
the issues that the anendnent brought wup on the Haines
sel ecti on.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON replied that Robert Venables, from
Hai nes, can speak to that.

CHAIR OLSON asked how many acres Haines started out wth
initially.

ROBERT VENABLES, planning conmm ssioner, Haines Borough, said he
was speaking on behalf of Mark Ernest, Haines Borough Mnager
He replied that the Haines Borough is about 2 mllion acres
proper with about 80,000 acres considered VUU |ands. The 10
percent entitlement would equal 8,000 acres. At the urging of
the state, the 3rd class Hai nes Borough was dissolved and a new
home borough was established. The entitlenent then should have
been extended. He noted that the grant is not just about the
land but is an entitlenment that to help subsidize the new cost
of a new borough formation. The acreage is a conprom se of what
they saw as available and useable - there's many nore acres of
VU |and which are not accessible. These are areas that have
prom se for developnent and use for the nunicipality that are
not seen as being useful to the state.

CHAI R OLSON asked if anyone is being displaced by the selections
of these | ands.

MR. VENABLES replied no.

CHAIR OLSON asked what the plans are for developing the extra
acr eage.

MR. VENABLES replied that the planning conm ssion would start
the classification process to find the best use. Subdivision is
possi ble, with taxes then subsidizing the nunicipal, operational
cost .

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- April 6, 2010



CHAIR OLSON asked what kind of services will be provided to
peopl e in that area.

MR. VENABLES replied that "sonetinmes the best service we can
provide is no service". Areas |ike Excursion Inlet are happy to
pay the mniml amounts for education and then be |eft alone.
O her tinmes, areas wll form a service area and then the
government delivers services the residents deem appropri ate.

3:47:12 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if Hai nes has been dropping in popul ation.

MR. VENABLES replied that the economc situation is grim wth

the loss of mlls and limted resource devel opnent. Haines'
popul ati on has been one of the nore stable in Southeast but is
still declining. He noted a small influx of retirees.

SENATOR THOVAS asked for confirmation that the 1,809 acres
indicated in the letter from Janice H I, mayor of Haines, are
included on in the 3,167 acres on page 2, line 7 of Version E

KACI SCHRCEDER HOTCH, staff to Representative Thonas, replied
yes and noted that Mayor Hill's letter of support was witten
before DNR said other parcels are avail abl e.

SENATOR THOMAS clarified that in discussions with DNR Hai nes
pi cked up further acreage.

M5. SCHRCEDER HOTCH replied yes.

3:50: 56 PM
CHAI R OLSON opened public testinony.

CAROL RUSHMORE, director, econom c devel opnent, City and Borough
of Wangell, said Wangell becane a borough in My, 2008. The
city has worked with Representative Peggy WIson on HB 273 and
with DNR to identify the acreage. In 2005, when the University

Land Gant bill was new, the city successfully |obbied for
Wangell to have first selection of three parcels of land in the
bill should Wangell become a borough by 2009. In 2005, the

borough's boundaries did not include part the Sunny Bay parcel
and Wangell did not realized they would be able to select sone
of that land. In 2006, Meyers Chuck approached Wangell to be
part of the borough and the boundary was changed and ultimtely
i ncluded sone of that parcel. Wangell is extrenely interested

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- April 6, 2010



in that parcel because of the jobs there now and potential for
addi ti onal econom c devel opnent and use by borough residents.

3:53:42 PM

Oiginally, some of the parcels the borough was |ooking at were
part of the Southeast State Forest and so the borough backed
off. As a tinber comunity, Wangell understands the need for
certain types of tinber land and feels that the state's

devel opment of tinber land will benefit the borough and city.
Wangell has requested an anmendnent to the current University
Land Gant bill so that Wangell has first rights to the Sunny
Bay parcel .

CHAIR OLSON asked what services the city and borough provides
currently and plans to provide for newy acquired areas.

M5. RUSHMORE replied that a couple of settlenent areas exist
wi thin the new borough area: Meyers Chuck, Thoms Place and dive
Cove. The city and borough has been working closely with Meyer's
Cove to identify what services they need, such as a new dock or
comuni cation services. Sonetinmes they do not want anything.

CHAI R OLSON asked about public safety and school s.

3:56:42 PM
M5. RUSHVORE replied that the city and borough does provide
search and rescue, police, planning and taxing.

CHAI R OLSON asked how t he Hai nes borough came to 3,176 acres.

MARK ERNEST, manager, Hai nes Bor ough, r esponded t hat
coordination with DNR found | ands deenmed VUU within the borough.
Little land was VUU and could be devel oped. Three parcels were
included in the university land selection bill but were dropped
and then nade available for selection. These, plus tw nore
parcels, one identified in the letter, make up the acreage.

3:59:19 PM

DON MCCONACHI E, mayor, Cty and Borough of Wangell, said
Wangell would like to be as responsible and self-sufficient as
possi ble. He pointed out that Wangell has kept in close contact
with its outlying areas.

CHAIR OLSON asked about Wangell's population now and in ten
years.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- April 6, 2010



MR. MCCONACHI E replied that Wangell's popul ation has declined
over the last ten years because of the down turn in the forest
industry and lack of job opportunities. Wangell is trying to
reinvent itself and expand on job opportunities. He foresees
m nimal growh over the next ten years but hopes it is slow and
st eady.

4:02: 07 PM

TIM ROONEY, manager, City and Borough of Wangell, enphasized
the inportance of the Sunny Bay area to the Wangell econony.
Al CS/ Crossings, Wangell's |argest enployer, utilizes the area.
He would like to see the area protected.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON commented she would like to see HB 273
moved out of commtt ee.

CHAIR OLSON asked what DNR s main objection to HB 273 is. He
asked if DNR supports HB 273.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON replied that "it is kind of hard to
tell". She suggested that if DNR is against HB 273, they would
be testifying. She noted that the original request was for
19,000 acres after |l ooking at the average percent that all other
bor oughs received upon formation. Negotiations ended with 10, 000
acres |less than that, but Wangell was still happy.

CHAIR OLSON asked if DNR negotiated the city and borough down
from 19,000 acres to 9,000 acres. He asked what DNR s stance is
on HB 273.

4:05: 34 PM

RICHARD MrLIUS, director, Division of Mning, Land and Water
(MW, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), said his office
adm nisters the nunicipal entitlenent program DNR agrees that
Hai nes and Wangell should get a larger |and settlenment because
the formula, in statute, resulted in a small anobunt of |and. DNR
agreed with Wangell on a figure of 6,506 acres and with Haines
for 1,809 acres. Both nunicipalities wanted one additional,
specific parcel of Jland each that was commtted to the
university in HB 295. HB 295 was anended and the Haines parcel
was w thdrawn and Wangell was to get priority on the parcel
there. DNR still feels it is appropriate for those parcels to go
to the university and prefers the snaller acreage figures. He
noted that HB 273 does not specify the parcels of land, only the
acreage. Later issues could arise during the conveyance process
because of conpeting issues. DNR does not oppose HB 273.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- April 6, 2010



SENATOR THOVAS asked what the other conpeting interests are and
how much | and entitlenent is still left.

MR. MYLIUS replied that one parcel in Haines had been identified
for a future park if it did not go to the university. No other
problens exist with the other acreage in Haines. In Wangell,
the 19,000 acreage figure would have a significant negative
impact on the state's tinber program The parcel at Sunny Bay
was not identified for tinber harvest but it was selected by the
state for possible future devel opment. HB 273 does not give the
Cty and Borough of Wangell that parcel; a subsequent deci sion-
maki ng process will take place to sort that out.

4:09: 56 PM
SENATOR THOVAS referred to the date October 1, 2011 in HB 273
and asked if that is the deadline for |and sel ection.

MR, MYLIUS replied that COctober 1, 2011, is the date by which
the land selections nust be filed and then DNR has to make a
best interest finding and a public notice on those lands. If DNR
rejects any of the selections, other land can be selected. DNR
is obligated to fulfill an entitlement; if sufficient land is
not available, <cash can be wused iif the legislature wll
appropriate the noney.

SENATOR THOMAS said he thought the land was classified VUU, he
asked if the borough has the first right to that |and.

MR. MYLIUS replied that DNR | ooks at the VUU classification and
then at the land use plan. The land use plan for one parcel in
Hai nes, even though it is VU, specifically says it has
potential for a state nmarine park. The borough is aware of that.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if designated VUU l|land can also have
anot her designated use that the boroughs should be aware of in
advance of their |and selection.

4:13:21 PM

MR, MYLIUS said the information is known to the borough through
the land use plan. The university land was different because it
was separate | egislation from 2005.

SENATOR THOVAS conmented that the university or Mental Health
Trust m ght have evaluated |and for m neral use or another use.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- April 6, 2010



CHAI R OLSON asked if M. Mlius would want to help the financia
viability of a small, struggling community with nobre acreage,
especially considering the state's incomng surplus this year.

4:15: 44 PM

MR. MYLIUS replied that granting land to nunicipalities does not
give them a lot of revenue. He said the land is nore "an
incentive to control their destiny” rather than a noney naker.
He said that Wangell agreed that taking state land out of
ti mber production has a negative inpact on Southeast's econony.

CHAIR OLSON said M. MWlius' answer sounds |ike the sponsor
woul d agree with him

MR. MYLIUS replied that the borough agreed with DNR that tinber
harvest |ands should stay with the state.

4:18:49 PM
CHAIR OLSON noted that giving a new borough half of their
requested | and does not encourage ot her boroughs to be forned.

MR. MYLIUS replied that the formula-driven entitlenent for the
W angel | Borough was only 1,900 acres and DNR is increasing that
five-fold. The borough came up with the formula that resulted in
the 19,000 acres and DNR did not agree with that fornula.

CHAIR OLSON said developnment is not encouraged unless nore
acreage is given to the local area.

MR, MYLIUS replied that the 19,000 acre figure gave W angel
more than half of all the state land within the borough which
woul d have negatively inpacted the state tinber program

4:20: 23 PM
CHAI R OLSON cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said that the forrmula [that Wangel
used] is based on how nuch state land is in borough boundaries
In Southeast, land is alnost all National Forest, not state
land. DNR did not want to give away land involved in the tinber
i ndustry and Wangell agreed. Wangell then asked for sone of
the land that was going to the wuniversity. She said, "There
should be some way that we can have parity wth the other
bor oughs".

SENATOR THOVAS noved to report CSHB 273(FIN), referred to as
Version E, from committee with individual recomendations and

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- April 6, 2010



acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, the notion
carri ed.

4:22:24 PM

CHAIR OLSON, seeing no further business to come before the
commttee, adjourned the neeting at 4:22 p. m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- April 6, 2010



